
AUGUST 28, 2012  PAGE 1 

BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS 
TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

SIERRA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 
TUESDAY 11:00 a.m. AUGUST 28, 2012 
 
PRESENT: 

Robert Larkin, Chairman  
Bonnie Weber, Vice Chairperson 
John Breternitz, Commissioner 

Kitty Jung, Commissioner 
David Humke, Commissioner* 

 
Amy Harvey, County Clerk 

Katy Simon, County Manager 
Paul Lipparelli, Legal Counsel 
Charles A. Moore, Fire Chief 

 
 The Board convened at 12:32 p.m. in regular session in the Commission 
Chambers of the Washoe County Administration Complex, 1001 East Ninth Street, Reno, 
Nevada, and conducted the following business: 
 
12-172F AGENDA ITEM 2 
 
Agenda Subject: “Public Comment. Comment heard under this item will be limited 
to two minutes per person and may pertain to matters both on and off the Board of 
Fire Commissioners agenda. The District will also hear public comment during 
individual action items, with comment limited to two minutes per person. 
Comments are to be made to the Board of Fire Commissioners as a whole.” 
  
 There was no response to the call for public comment. 
 
 CONSENT AGENDA – ITEMS 3A THROUGH 3B 
 
12-173F AGENDA ITEM 3A 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approval of TMFPD-SFPD meeting minutes from July 24, 2012.” 
 
 There was no response to the call for public comment.  
 
 On motion by Commissioner Weber, seconded by Commissioner Jung, 
which motion duly carried with Commissioner Humke absent, it was ordered that Agenda 
Item 3A be approved.   
 
  



PAGE 2  AUGUST 28, 2012 

12-174F AGENDA ITEM 3B 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approval of the WC Volunteer Report for month of July 2012.” 
 
 There was no response to the call for public comment.  
 
 On motion by Commissioner Weber, seconded by Commissioner Jung, 
which motion duly carried with Commissioner Humke absent, it was ordered that Agenda 
Item 3B be approved.   
 
12-175F AGENDA ITEM 4A 
 
Agenda Subject: “Fire Chief Report – A) Report and discussion related to fire 
district operations by Truckee Meadows Fire Chief Charles A. Moore.”  
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore said the modular units for the Hidden Valley 
fire station had been set and the contractor was working on the exterior decks and making 
the final data hookups. He believed the station would be operational in 10 days. He 
thanked the Sheriff for the use of some offices as a temporary fire station.  
 
12:35 p.m. Commissioner Humke arrived. 
 
 Chief Moore said the District’s hazardous-materials team had been 
meeting with the teams from the Cities of Reno and Sparks regarding the training of nine 
hazardous-materials technicians by November 2012. He stated those technicians would 
put HAZMAT capabilities where they needed to be.  
 
 Chief Moore discussed the 685 responses by the District for the month of 
July. He noted the majority of those responses were brush fires burning approximately 
850 acres. He stated none of the July fires required two in/two out. He stated one fire in 
August required an interior attack, which was achieved by response of the volunteers at 
Pleasant Valley. He noted there was no delay in being able to mount an interior attack on 
that structure fire.  
 
 Chief Moore said the goal for July was for the District to be response 
ready and to let the system work for awhile to see what issues needed to be worked on. 
He stated after the wildfire season was over, staff would begin planning. He advised the 
dispatch process had too many steps involved in dispatching the volunteer agencies, and 
staff would be looking for opportunities to refine their dispatching process. He stated 
most of the hiccups in the first month were software related, but nothing operational had 
surfaced as a huge problem during a very busy month. He said he was pleased with his 
staff. He stated good people were hired who were highly motivated and talented, and he 
gave them an enormous amount of credit for getting the District through its first month. 
Chairman Larkin congratulated the Chief and also thanked his staff. 
 



AUGUST 28, 2012  PAGE 3 

 Chief Moore discussed the table summarizing mutual aid for July 2012, 
which was placed on file with the Clerk. He stated at the last joint meeting there was 
some disagreement on what mutual aid was. He noted the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) indicated how data should be coded for mutual aid and 
defined mutual aid as any two fire departments operating at any one incident. He said the 
table showed that the mutual aid provided was fairly close to that received, and he did not 
expect to see a huge variance in those numbers through the rest of the year. He stated the 
numbers had been verified by going through all of the 685 incident reports by hand to 
confirm there were two fire departments at the scene. He said some incidents were EMS 
and some were covering another department’s station.  
 
 Chief Moore asked the Board what types of metrics it would like to see 
going forward, for example, the incident frequency by type of call. He noted the average 
response time would be off because of the District being so spread out and also because 
some people walked into a station with a medical emergency, which would have a 
response time of zero. He said the response times based on the eight-minute response 
time for a particular station might be helpful. Chairman Larkin said the Board had been 
exposed to the response time in the Diamante LLC report, which broke the districts into 
eight-minute and best effort. He said that might have some interest in terms of 
transparency in providing the public with the information on how the District was 
performing. He requested Chief Moore continue with the mutual aid report and to report 
on the number of responses by incident and by station. 
 
 Commissioner Breternitz requested adding a cumulative total for the fiscal 
year to the mutual aid table, which would show whether the received and proved mutual 
aid balanced out over the course of the year.  
 
 Commissioner Humke agreed the response time would not be that helpful, 
but breaking the incidents down by station would be interesting.  
 
 Chief Moore advised data collection would improve as the mobile data 
terminals were put into District’s vehicles. He said the terminals would provide GPS 
routing data and would record when the truck was moving and arrived on the scene.  
 
12-176F AGENDA ITEM 4B 
 
Agenda Subject: “Fire Chief Report – B) Reno Safer Grant Analysis as requested 
by Commissioner Breternitz.”  
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore said he assembled as much of the record on the 
Reno’s Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) Grant that he 
could find. He stated clearly the Grant used some of the District’s demographics in the 
application, but it was also apparent the City of Reno met with Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) officials. He said it was impossible for staff to determine 
how the grant application was presented to FEMA, but he assumed Reno reported on 



PAGE 4  AUGUST 28, 2012 

what the deconsolidation would change. He felt it was unlikely those facts were hidden 
from FEMA. He advised it would be hard for staff to pursue this any further.  
 
 Commissioner Breternitz said he requested this analysis because of the 
concerns raised by the public, and he wanted an objective report from the Chief regarding 
the SAFER Grant. He stated he agreed FEMA had an idea what the SAFER Grant was 
for and what was included in it, and he had no desire to propose any further action.  
 
 Chairman Larkin asked if the District was applying for a SAFER Grant. 
Chief Moore replied the District had. He said it would be used to develop an auxiliary 
program to train young men and women with an interest in fire services as a career, and 
allow participation in the District’s daily staffing. He stated that could increase staffing 
from three to four at a very low cost for at least two years. He said the goal was to recruit 
between 20 and 30 firefighters and to offer them a stipend to attend Truckee Meadows 
Community College to study fire science and to do their lab portion with the District. He 
said this would develop the District’s farm club for future employees. 
 
 Chairman Larkin asked if Chief Moore was satisfied FEMA knew there 
was no misrepresentation and the purpose of the federal funding was solely to support the 
City of Reno’s firefighters. Chief Moore he said he had no facts to support that, but he 
could not imagine that the facts presented to FEMA would be any different.  
 
 There was no action taken or public comment on this item. 
 
12:51 a.m. Commissioner Weber left. 
 
12-177F AGENDA ITEM 5 
 
Agenda Subject: “Discussion and possible adoption by both Districts of Washoe 
County's Chapter 60 Fire Code, as amended from time to time, and authorize 
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District employees to enforce it on all property 
within both districts' jurisdictions.” 
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore introduced Amy Ray, TMFPD Fire Marshall.  
 
 Commissioner Jung commented this item would equalize the fire rules 
between the TMFPD and the SFPD. Fire Marshall Ray replied that was correct.  
 
 There was no response to the call for public comment.  
 
 On motion by Commissioner Breternitz, seconded by Commissioner 
Humke, which motion duly carried with Commissioner Weber absent, it was ordered that 
Agenda Item 5 be adopted and authorized. The Resolution for same is attached hereto 
and made a part of the minutes thereof. 
 
  



AUGUST 28, 2012  PAGE 5 

12-178F AGENDA ITEM 6 
 
Agenda Subject: “Discussion and possible adoption of Washoe County Public 
Records Policy as approved by the Board of County Commissioners on November 
20, 2007, and as amended from time to time.” 
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore said since the District was a standalone agency, 
Legal Counsel recommended it adopt a public records policy. He stated the proposal was 
to adopt what the County adopted.  
 
 There was no response to the call for public comment.  
 
 On motion by Commissioner Breternitz, seconded by Commissioner Jung, 
which motion duly carried with Commissioner Weber absent, it was ordered that Agenda 
Item 6 be adopted. The Resolution for same is attached hereto and made a part of the 
minutes thereof. 
 
12-179F AGENDA ITEM 7 
 
Agenda Subject: “Discussion and possible direction to staff regarding a Bill Draft 
Request for Regional Fire Consolidation.” 
 
 Chairman Larkin said there was a legislative session coming up, and he 
asked if the Board of Fire Commissioners wanted to give direction to the Board of 
County Commissioners regarding putting forward any bill draft request language 
regarding the consolidation of fire services.  
 
 Commissioner Breternitz said ultimately legislation would be required to 
accomplish what he felt all of the Commissioners believed would be in the best interests 
of this whole area. He said the issues were complex and he was not sure the Board knew 
what to ask for. He stated it was an extremely worthy effort to set a goal to move forward 
with some sort of legislation for regionalization for fire and also for Emergency Medical 
System (EMS) services. However, a great deal of work needed to be done to determine 
what needed to be asked for. He said a complicating factor was two Commissioners 
would no longer be on the Board after the first of the year, and the new Commissioners 
probably would want to have their fingers in this pie.  
 
12:57 pm.  Commissioner Weber returned.  
 
 Commissioner Breternitz suggested putting together a group of people or 
using staff to determine exactly how the Regional Fire would be governed, what 
happened in other areas, and what the best practices were. He stated while he supported 
the idea of regionalization, he suggested formulating a strategy for the 2015 Legislative 
Session. 
 
 Commissioner Humke said he agreed with Commissioner Breternitz. He 
felt the concentration should be on the TMFPD and on finding other agencies to explore 



PAGE 6  AUGUST 28, 2012 

commonality with, which he felt had not fully taken place yet; and he felt next year 
would be the time to have some those meetings. He stated having a dedicated resource to 
fund the fire district would be the way to control costs, live within the district’s means, 
and to deliver the best service possible; and he was not certain that could be had with any 
the County’s perspective partners.  
 
 In response to the call for public comment, William Steward spoke in 
favor of regionalization, because he believed having one agency would be the most 
efficient way of doing government. He felt EMS services should be done the same way. 
He said great strides were being made, but he wanted the Board to have a plan and act on 
it rather than putting the studies on the shelf as was done in the past.  
 
 There was no action taken by the Board.  
 
The following Agenda Item #8 was heard by the Board of Fire Commissioners for 
the Sierra Fire Protection District only. 
 
12-180F AGENDA ITEM 8 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approve a Resolution to donate one surplus used fire 
apparatus, one 1988 Seagrave Fire Water Tender VIN#1F9EX3J8JCST2185 in 
"as is" condition from Sierra Fire Protection District to the Pyramid Lake 
Paiute Tribe; if approved, authorize the Chairman to execute Resolution for 
same.” 
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore said the Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribe had 
requested some help. He noted they did not have a strong water system within their 
jurisdiction and the District had a water tender that was too old to provide reliable front-
line service. He said the water tender was an excellent apparatus to donate to them, so the 
vehicle was inspected to ensure it was in reasonably good mechanical condition; and a 
fuel pump was replaced.  
 
 In response to the call for public comment, Donald Pelt, Pyramid Lake 
Paiute Tribe Emergency Response Coordinator, thanked the Board for the donation. He 
advised the water tender would remain in the mutual aid inventory.  
 
 On motion by Commissioner Humke, seconded by Commissioner 
Breternitz, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 8 be approved, 
authorized, and executed. The Resolution for same is attached hereto and made a part of 
the minutes thereof. 
 
The following Agenda Item #9 was heard by the Board of Fire Commissioners for the 
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District only. 
 
  



AUGUST 28, 2012  PAGE 7 

12-181F AGENDA ITEM 9 
 
Agenda Subject: “Discussion and approval of Cooperative Agreement between 
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District and the North Lake Tahoe Fire 
Protection District.” 
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore advised refinements were made to the 
Cooperative Agreement by the Districts’ Legal Counsels and now it was ready to be 
approved. He advised automatic aid was used extensively on the Mt. Rose Corridor, 
because the North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District was often the closest resource and 
could respond quicker at the summit. He said the recommendation was the Board approve 
this mutual aid agreement.  
 
 There was no response to the call for public comment.  
 
 On motion by Commissioner Breternitz, seconded by Commissioner Jung, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 9 be approved. The 
Cooperative Agreement for same is attached hereto and made a part of the minutes 
thereof. 
 
12-182F AGENDA ITEM 10 
 
Agenda Subject: “Possible Closed Session for TMFPD pursuant to NRS 288.220 for 
the purpose of discussion labor matters with management representatives and/or 
negotiations with bargaining units.  
 
  There was no closed session. 
 
12-183F AGENDA ITEM 11 
 
Agenda Subject: “Commissioners’/Manager’s Announcements, requests for 
information, topics for future agendas, and statements relating to items not on the 
Agenda. (No discussion among Commissioners will take place on this item.)” 
 
 There were no announcements. 
 
12-184F AGENDA ITEM 12 
 
Agenda Subject: “Public Comment. Comment heard under this item will be limited 
to two minutes per person and may pertain to matters both on and off the Board of 
Fire Commissioners agenda. The Commission will also hear public comment during 
individual action items, with comment limited to two minutes per person. 
Comments are to be made to the Commission as a whole.” 
 
 Jeffery Church stated he disagreed with Chief Moore’s assertions 
regarding the City of Reno’s Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response 
(SAFER) Grant. He said there was no amendment that called for the Grant to apply only 



PAGE 8  AUGUST 28, 2012 

to the City of Reno. He stated he had a 10-page report detailing the SAFER Grant 
violations. He said the Grant was clearly for both the TFMFD and the City of Reno. He 
requested the Board have Chief Moore ask the Federal Emergency Management Agency 
(FEMA) whether or not the Grant was a joint grant and what did it require the City of 
Reno to do in terms of Washoe County.  
 
 * * * * * * * * * * * 
 
1:12 p.m. Chairman Larkin said the meeting was adjourned without opposition.  
 
 
 
 
 
  _____________________________ 
  ROBERT M. LARKIN, Chairman 

Sierra Fire Protection District and 
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection 
District 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
AMY HARVEY, County Clerk 
and Ex-Officio Clerk, Sierra Fire  
Protection District and Truckee Meadows  
Fire Protection District 
 
Minutes Prepared By: 
Jan Frazzetta, Deputy County Clerk  
 
 












































	BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS
	TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
	SIERRA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
	12-172F AGENDA ITEM 2
	12-173F AGENDA ITEM 3A
	12-174F AGENDA ITEM 3B
	12-175F AGENDA ITEM 4A
	12-176F AGENDA ITEM 4B
	12-177F AGENDA ITEM 5
	12-178F AGENDA ITEM 6
	12-179F AGENDA ITEM 7
	12-180F AGENDA ITEM 8
	12-181F AGENDA ITEM 9
	12-182F AGENDA ITEM 10
	12-183F AGENDA ITEM 11
	12-184F AGENDA ITEM 12
	Jan Frazzetta, Deputy County Clerk



